UNI TED STATES OF AMER CA
FEDERAL TRADE COW SS| ON

In The Matter of
FILE NO 952 3096
M TSUBI SH MOTCR SALES
CF AMERICA, INC,

a corporation.

ACREEMENT CONTAI NI NG
OCONSENT  CRDER

N N N N N |

The Federal Trade Comm ssion ("Comm ssion") has conducted an
investigation of certain acts and practices of M tsubishi Mtor
Sales of Anerica, Inc., a corporation ("proposed respondent").
Proposed respondent, havi ng been represented by counsel, is
willing to enter into an agreenent containing a consent order
resolving the allegations contained in the attached draft
conplaint. Therefore,

| T 1S HEREBY AGREED by and between Mt subi shi Mtor Sal es of
Anerica, Inc., by its duly authorized officers, and counsel for
the Federal Trade Conmm ssion that:

1. Proposed respondent M tsubishi Mtor Sales of Anerica, Inc.
is a Clifornia corporation with its principal office or place
of business at 6400 Katella Avenue, Cypress, California 90630.

2. Proposed respondent admts all the jurisdictional facts set
forth in the draft conplaint.
3. Proposed respondent wai ves:

a. Any further procedural steps;

b. The requirenent that the Conm ssion's decision

contain a statenent of findings of fact and
concl usions of law and

C. Al rights to seek judicial review or otherwi se to
chall enge or contest the validity of the order
entered pursuant to this agreenent.

4. Thi s agreenent shall not becone part of the public record of
the proceeding unless and until it is accepted by the Conm ssion.
If this agreenment is accepted by the Coomssion, it, together
with the draft conplaint, will be placed on the public record for
a period of sixty (60) days and information about it publicly



rel eased. The Comm ssion thereafter nmay either wthdraw its
acceptance of this agreenment and so notify proposed respondent,
in which event it will take such action as it may consi der
appropriate, or issue and serve its conplaint (in such formas
the circunstances may require) and decision in disposition of the
pr oceedi ng.

5. This agreenent is for settlenment purposes only and does not
constitute an adm ssion by proposed respondent that the | aw has
been violated as alleged in the draft conplaint, or that the
facts as alleged in the draft conplaint, other than the
jurisdictional facts, are true.

6. This agreenent contenplates that, if it is accepted by the
Comm ssion, and if such acceptance is not subsequently w thdrawn
by the Conmm ssion pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.34 of
the Comm ssion's Rules, the Comm ssion may, w thout further
notice to proposed respondent, (1) issue its conplaint
corresponding in formand substance with the attached draft
conplaint and its decision containing the follow ng order in

di sposition of the proceeding, and (2) nake information about it
public. Wen so entered, the order shall have the sanme force and
effect and may be altered, nodified, or set aside in the sane
manner and within the same tine provided by statute for other
orders. The order shall becone final upon service. Delivery of
the conplaint and the decision and order to proposed respondent
by any neans specified in Section 4.4 of the Coomssion's Rul es
shall constitute service. Proposed respondent waives any right
it may have to any other manner of service. The conplaint nay be
used in construing the terns of the order. No agreenent,

under standi ng, representation, or interpretation not contained in
the order or in the agreenent nay be used to vary or contradict
the terns of the order.

7. Proposed respondent has read the draft conplaint and consent
order. It understands that it may be liable for civil penalties
in the anmount provided by |aw and other appropriate relief for
each violation of the order after it becones final.

ORDER

DEFI NI TI ONS

1. "Qear ly and conspi cuousl y" as used herein shall nean:

1) video or witten disclosures nust be nade in a manner that is
readabl e and under st andabl e to a reasonabl e consunmer and 2) audi o
or oral disclosures nust be nmade in a manner that is audible and
under st andabl e to a reasonabl e consuner.

2. "Total amount due at |ease inception" as used herein shal
mean the total anmount of any initial paynents required to be paid
by the | essee on or before consummati on of the | ease or delivery
of the vehicle, whichever is later, excluding deal er and
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gover nment nandated fees and charges (if any).

3. "Bal | oon paynent"” as used herein shall mean any schedul ed
paynent with respect to a consuner credit transaction that is at
| east twice as |large as the average of earlier schedul ed
paynent s.

4, Unl ess otherwise s pecified, "respondent” as used herein
shall nmean Mtsubishi Mdtor Sales of Arerica, Inc., its
successors and assigns, and its officers, agents, represen-
tatives, and enpl oyees.

5. "I'n or affecting comrerce" as used herein shall nean as
defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act ("FTC

Act"), 15 US C § 44.
.

I T 1S ORDERED that respondent, directly or through any
corporation, subsidiary, division, or any other device, in
connection with any advertisenent to aid, pronote, or assist,
directly or indirectly, any consuner |lease in or affecting
commerce, as "advertisenment" and "consuner |ease" are defined in
Section 213.2 of revised Regulation M 61 Fed. Reg. 52, 246,

52,258 (Qct. 7, 1996)(to be codified at 12 CF. R § 213. 2)
("revised Regulation M), as anended, shall not, in any nanner,
expressly or by inplication:

A M srepresent the total anount due at | ease inception,
t he anount down, and/or the downpaynent, capitalized cost
reduction, or other amount that reduces the capitalized cost of
the vehicle (or that no such anount is required).

B. Make any reference to any charge that is part of the
total amount due at |ease inception or that no such charge is
required, not including a statenent of the periodic paynent, nore
promnently than the disclosure of the total anmount due at | ease
i nception.

C State the anount of any paynent or that any or no
initial payment is required at |ease inception unless all of the
following itens are disclosed clearly and conspi cuously, as
appl i cabl e:
that the transaction advertised is a | ease;
the total anount due at | ease inception;

that a security deposit is required,

P W N

t he nunber, anount, and timng of schedul ed
paynents; and
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5. that an extra charge nay be inposed at the end of
the lease termin a lease in which the liability
of the consunmer at the end of the |lease termis
based on the anticipated residual val ue of the
vehi cl e.

.
I T 1S FURTHER CRDERED that an advertisenment that conplies

with subparagraph |I.C shall be deened to satisfy the
requi renents of Section 184(a) of the Consuner Leasing Act, 15

US C § 1667c(a), as anended by Title Il, Section 2605 of the
Qmi bus Consol i dated Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 1997,
Pub. L. No. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, (Sept. 30, 1996)

("revised CLA"), as anended, and Section 213.7(d)(2) of revised
Regulation M 61 Fed. Reg. at 52,261 (to be codified at 12 CF. R

§ 213.7(d)(2)), as anended.
I,

I T 1S FURTHER CRDERED that if the revised CLA, as anended,
or revised Regulation M as anmended, are anended in the future to
alter definition 2 of this order ("total anount due at |ease
inception") or to require or permt advertising disclosures that
are different fromthose set forth in subparagraphs 1.B. or |.C
of this order, then the change or changes shall be incorporated
in subparagraph |I.B., subparagraph |I.C, and/or definition 2 for
t he purpose of conplying with subparagraphs |.B. and I.C only,
as appropriate; provided however , that all other requirenents of
this order, including definition 1 ("clearly and conspi cuously"),
w || survive any such revisions.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat respondent, directly or through
any corporation, subsidiary, division, or any other device, in
connection with any advertisenent to aid, pronote, or assist,
directly or indirectly, any extension of consuner credit in or
affecting commerce, as "advertisenent" and "consuner credit" are

defined in Section 226.2 of Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226.2, as
amended, shall not, in any nmanner, expressly or by inplication:

A M srepresent the exi stence and anount of any bal | oon
paynment or the annual percentage rate.

B. State the anount of any paynent, including but not
l[imted to any nonthly paynment, in any advertisenment unless the
amount of any bal | oon paynment is disclosed promnently and in
close proximty to the nost promnent of the above statenents.

C State the anount or percentage of any downpaynent, the
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nunber of paynents or period of repaynent, the anmount of any
peri odi ¢ paynent, including but not limted to any nonthly
paynent, or the anmount of any finance charge, w thout disclosing
clearly and conspi cuously:

1. t he anount or percentage of the downpaynent;
2. the terns of repaynent, including but not
[imted to the anmount of any bal |l oon paynent;
and
3. the correct annual percentage rate, using that

termor the abbreviation "APR " as defined in Regulation Z and
the Oficial Staff Commentary to Regulation Z |If the annual
percentage rate may be increased after consunmati on of the credit
transaction, that fact nust al so be discl osed.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondent M tsubishi Mtor Sal es
of Anerica, Inc., and its successors and assigns, shall, for five
(5) years after the date of service of this order, maintain and
upon request nmake avail able to the Comm ssion for inspection and
copying all records that will denonstrate conpliance with the
requi renents of this order

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondent M itsubishi Mtor Sales
of Arerica, Inc., and its successors and assigns, shall deliver a
copy of this order to all current and future principals,
officers, directors, managers, enployees, agents, and
representatives having responsibilities with respect to the
subject matter of this order and to all advertising agencies; and
shall secure fromeach such person or entity a signed and dat ed
stat ement acknowl edgi ng recei pt of the order. Respondent shal
deliver this order to current personnel or entities within thirty
(30) days after the date of service of this order, and to such
future personnel or entities within thirty (30) days after the
person or entity assumes such position or responsibilities.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondent M tsubishi Mtor Sal es
of Anerica, Inc., and its successors and assigns, shall notify
the Commssion at least thirty (30) days prior to any change in
the corporation that may affect conpliance obligations arising
under this order, including but not necessarily limted to
di ssol ution, assignnent, sale, nmerger, or other action that woul d
result in the energence of a successor corporation; the creation
or dissolution of a subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages
in any acts or practices subject to this order; the proposed
filing of a bankruptcy petition; or a change in the corporate
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name or address. Provi ded, however , that, with respect to any
proposed change in the corporation about which respondent |earns
less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such actionis to

t ake pl ace, respondent shall notify the Conm ssion as soon as is
practi cabl e after obtaining such know edge. Al notices required
by this Part shall be sent by certified mail to the Associate
Drector, Dvision of Enforcenent, Bureau of Consumer Protection,
Federal Trade Conm ssion, Wshington, D. C 20580.

V.

| T 1S FURTHER CRDERED t hat respondent M tsubishi Mtor Sal es
of Anerica, Inc., and its successors and assigns, shall wthin
one hundred and twenty (120) days after the date of service of
this order, and at such other tines as the Federal Trade
Comm ssion nay require, file with the Conmssion a report, in
witing, setting forth in detail the manner and formin which
they have conplied with this order

I X

This order will termnate twenty (20) years fromthe date of
its issuance, or twenty (20) years fromthe nost recent date that
the United States or the Federal Trade Conmssion files a
conplaint (with or without an acconpanyi ng consent decree) in
federal court alleging any violation of the order, whichever
cones later; provided, however , that the filing of such a
conplaint will not affect the duration of:

A Any Part in this order that termnates in | ess than
twenty (20) years;

B. This order's application to any respondent that is not
named as a defendant in such conplaint; and

C This order if such conplaint is filed after the order
has termnated pursuant to this Part.

Provided further , that if such conplaint is dismssed or a
federal court rules that the respondent did not violate any

provi sion of the order, and the dismssal or ruling is either not
appeal ed or upheld on appeal, then the order will term nate
according to this Part as though the conpl aint had never been
filed, except that the order will not termnate between the date
such conplaint is filed and the |ater deadline for appealing such
dismssal or ruling and the date such dismssal or ruling is
uphel d on appeal .

Signed t his day of , 1996.

FEDERAL TRADE COW SSI ON M TSUBI SH MOTCR SALES
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ROLANDO BERRELEZ

G- AMER CA, I NC

ELLEN J. G_EBERVAN
Vi ce- Presi dent and

Ceneral GCounsel

SALLY FORVAN PI TOFSKY

LAUREN B. STElI NFELD
Counsel for Federal Trade
Comm ssi on

APPROVED:

DAVI D MED NE
Associ ate D rector
Dvision of Gedit Practices

JOAN Z. BERNSTEI N
D rector
Bureau of Consuner Protection
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KRI STI FI SCHER

Counsel

M t subi shi Mdtor Sal es
of Anerica, Inc.

J. THQVAS ROSCH
Counsel for Respondent
Lat ham & Vt ki ns
505 Montgonery Street
Suite 1900
San Franci sco, CA
94111- 2562



UNI TED STATES OF AMER CA
FEDERAL TRADE COW SS| ON

)
In The Matter of )
) DOCKET NO
M TSUBI SH MOTOR SALES )
CF AMERI CA, | NC., )
a corporation. )
)
COVPLAI NT

The Federal Trade Comm ssion, having reason to believe that
Mt subi shi Mdtor Sales of Arerica, Inc., a corporation
("respondent™ or "Mtsubishi"), has violated the provisions of

t he Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S. C §§ 45-58, as anended,
t he Consuner Leasing Act, 15 U S. C §§ 1667-1667e, as anended,
and its inplenenting Regulation M 12 CF. R § 213, as anmended,
and the Truth in Lending Act, 15 U S.C §§ 1601- 1667, as anended,
and its inplenenting Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226, as anmended,

and it appearing to the Coomssion that this proceeding is in the
public interest, alleges:

1. Respondent M tsubishi Mtor Sales of Anerica, Inc. is a
California corporation with its principal office or place of
busi ness at 6400 Katel | a Avenue, Cypress, California 90630.
Respondent distributes Mtsubishi vehicles and of fers such
vehicles for sale or | ease to consuners.

2. Respondent has di ssem nated advertisenents to the public
that pronote consuner |eases, as the terns "advertisenent" and
"consuner | ease" are defined in Section 213.2 of Regulation M

12 CF.R § 213.2, as anended.

3. Respondent has di ssem nated advertisenents to the public
that pronote credit sales and ot her extensions of closed-end
credit in consuner credit transactions, as the terns
"advertisement," "credit sale," and "consuner credit" are defined

in Section 226.2 of Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226. 2, as anended.

4, The acts and practices of respondent alleged in this
conpl ai nt have been in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is



defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act,
15 U.S.C. § 44.



Lease Adverti sing

5. Respondent has di ssem nated or has caused to be di ssem nat ed

consuner | ease advertisenents ( “l ease advertisenents ") for

M t subi shi vehicles, including but not necessarily limted to the
attached Mtsubishi Exhibits Athrough C Mtsubishi Exhibits A
and B are television | ease adverti senents (attached in video and
storyboard format). Mtsubishi Exhibit Cis a print |ease
advertisenment. These advertisenents contain the foll ow ng

st at ement s:

A [ Audi 0:] "Lease for zero down and just two forty-nine a
month for thirty-six nonths."

[ Vi deo: ]
"MTSUBI SH GALANT S
$0 DOMN $249 A MONTH, 36 MONTHS'

[ The advertisenent contains the follow ng | ease
di scl osure at the bottomof the screen in dark-col ored
fine print superinposed on a background of simlar
shade: "First payment, plus a $0 down paynent and a
refundabl e security deposit of $250 (in Ny, final
nont hly payment of $249 in lieu of security deposit)
due upon delivery. 36 nonthly paynents based on MBRP
of $18,043 . . . with a dealer capitalized cost
reduction of $922, excluding tax, title, l|icense,
regi stration, regionally required equi prent, deal er
options, and charges for a 36-cl osed nonth cl osed-end
lease. . . . Total paynents: $8964 Lessee liable for
mai nt enance, non-warrantabl e repairs, excess wear and
tear, and up to 15[cents]/mle over 36,000 mles and
$350 disposition fee and applicable taxes at |ease end.
Option to purchase at | ease end for residual val ue of
$10, 068, plus applicable fees and taxes and purchase
option fee of $150. . . ." The fine print is displayed
on three screens, each containing a bl ock of at |east
seven lines, and each bl ock appearing for approxi nmately
three seconds. | (M tsubishi Exhibit A).

B. [ Audi 0:] "Lease for just two forty-nine a nnnth for
forty-eight nonths with a thousand dol | ars down.'

[ Vi deo: ]
"$1000 DOAN
$249 A MONTH 48 MONTHS'

[ The advertisenent contains the follow ng | ease



di scl osure at the bottomof the screen in white fine
print superinposed on a dark-col ored, noving background
and acconpani ed by background sound and ot her novi ng
i mages: "First payment, plus a $1000 down paynent and a
refundabl e security deposit of $250 (in Ny, final
nont hly payment of $249 in lieu of security deposit)
due upon delivery. 48 nonthly paynents based on NMBRP
of $18,747 . . . with a dealer capitalized cost
reduction of $1,289, excluding tax, title, license,
regi stration, regionally required equi prent, deal er
options, and charges for a 48-nonth cl osed-end

lease. . . . Total paynents: $11,952 Lessee |liable
for maintenance, non-warrantable repairs, excess wear
and tear, and up to 15[ cents]/mle over 60,000 mles
and $350 disposition fee and applicable taxes at | ease
end. ption to purchase at | ease end for residual
val ue of $8,436, plus applicable fees, taxes and
purchase option fee of $150. . . ." The fine print is
di spl ayed on three screens, each containing a bl ock of
seven lines, and each bl ock appearing for approxi mately
three seconds.] (Mtsubishi Exhibit B)

" $0
Down Pl us
$500
CASH BACK

Now, Lease for 36 Months or
Buy a Galant S

LEASE
R
BUY
$0 DO
$249 A MONTH'

[ The advertisenent contains the follow ng | ease
dlsclosure at the bottomof the page in small print:

. **First paynent, plus a $0 down paynent and a
r ef undabl e security dep05|t of $250 (in Ny, final
nont hly payment of $249 in lieu of security deposit)
due upon delivery. 36 nonthly paynents based on MBRP
of $18,043 for a Galant S with automatic transm ssion
(FOG A88), with a dealer capitalized cost reduction of
$922, excluding tax, title, license, registration,
regi onal 'y required equi prent, deal er options, and
charges for a 36-nonth cl osed-end | ease rounded to the
nearest dollar. Total payments: $8,964. Lessee liable
for maintenance, non-warrantable repairs, excess wear
and tear, and up to 15 [cents]/mle over 36,000 mles
and $350 di sposition fee and applicable taxes at | ease



end. ption to purchase at | ease end for residual
val ue of $10,068, plus applicable fees and taxes and

purchase option fee of $150. . . . “ (Mtsubishi
Exhibit C.

Federal Trade Conm ssion Act Viol ations
COUNT I: Msrepresentation in Lease Advertising

6. Through the nmeans descri bed i n Paragraph 5, respondent has
represented, expressly or by inplication, that the anount stated
as "down" in respondent's | ease advertisenents is the tota
amount consumers nust pay at | ease inception to | ease the
adverti sed vehicl es.

7. In truth and in fact, the anmount stated as "down" in

respondent ’s | ease advertisenents is not the total anount
consuners nust pay at |ease inception to | ease the adverti sed
vehicles. Consuners nust al so pay additional fees beyond the
anmount stated as "down," such as the first nonth's paynment and
security deposit, at |ease inception. Therefore, respondent's
representation as alleged in Paragraph 6 was, and is, fal se or
m sl eadi ng.

8. Respondent's practices constitute deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)

of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S. C § 45(a).

COUNT Il: Failure to D sclose Adequately in Lease Adverti sing

9. In its | ease advertisenents, respondent has represented,
expressly or by inplication, that consuners can | ease the
advertised vehicles at the ternms promnently stated in the
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to the

nont hl y paynment anmount and/ or anount stated as “down. ” These
| ease advertisenents do not adequately disclose additional terns
pertaining to the | ease offer, including but not necessarily
limted to a required security deposit and first nonth's paynent
due at | ease inception. The existence of additional terns woul d
be material to consuners in deciding whether to | ease a

M t subi shi vehicle. The failure to disclose adequately these
additional ternms, in light of the representation nade, was, and
is, a deceptive practice.

10. Respondent's practices constitute deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)

of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S. C § 45(a).
COUNT I11: Consuner Leasing Act and Regul ation M Viol ations




11. Respondent ’s | ease advertisenents, including but not
necessarily limted to Mtsubishi Exhibits A through C state a
nmont hly paynment anount, the nunber of required paynents, and/or

an anmount “down. ” The | ease disclosures in these advertisenents
contain one or nore of the followi ng terns required by Regul ation
M that the transaction advertised is a | ease; the total anount
of any paynment such as a security deposit or capitalized cost
reduction required at the consummati on of the | ease or that no
such paynments are required; the total of periodic paynments due
under the | ease; a statenent of whether or not the | essee has the
option to purchase the | eased property and at what price and tine
or the nethod of determning the purchase-option price; and a
statenent of the anount or nethod of determning the anmount of
any liabilities the | ease i nposes upon the | essee at the end of
the term

12. The |l ease disclosures in respondent's television | ease
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to

Mt subi shi Exhibits A and B, are not clear and conspi cuous
because they appear on the screen in snmall type, against a
background of simlar shade, for a very short duration, wth
background sounds or inages, and/or over a noving background.

The | ease disclosures in respondent ’'s print |ease advertisenents,
i ncluding but not necessarily limted to Mtsubishi Exhibit C
are not clear and conspi cuous because they appear in snall type.

13. Respondent's practices violate Section 184 of the Consuner
Leasing Act, 15 U S C  § 1667c, as anended, and Section 213.5(¢)
of Regulation M 12 CF. R § 213.5(c), as anended.

O edit Adverti sing

14. Respondent h as di ssem nated or has caused to be di ssem nat ed

credit sale advertisenents ( “credit advertisenments ”) for

M t subi shi vehicles, including but not necessarily limted to the
attached Mtsubishi Exhibits C D and EE Mtsubishi Exhibits D
and E are television credit advertisenents (attached in video and
storyboard format). Mtsubishi Exhibit C described above, is
also a print credit advertisement. These advertisenents contain
the foll ow ng statenents:

A [Audio:] "Buy a new Galant ES with autonatic transms
[Video:] "$199 a no. $750 down/
Aut o. Transm ssi on
Al r conditioning.

[ The advertisenent contains the follow ng cr edit
di scl osure at the bottomof the screen in |ight-col ored



fine print superinposed on a |ight-col ored, noving
background w th background sounds and i mages: "Exanple
based on MSRP of $18,300 and a selling price of $16, 764
for a Galant ES (FOG A83). $750 down. 5.15% APR
D anond Advantage Pl an financing for 60 nonths: 59
nonths at $199 per nonth and a FI NAL PAYMENT COF $7, 320.
Tax, title, license, registration, regionally required
equi prent, deal er options, and charges extra. Under
certain conditions you may refinance the final paynent
or sell the vehicle to Mtsubishi Mtors Gedit of
Anerica, Inc. at end of term. . ." The fine print is
di spl ayed on two screens, each containing a bl ock of
five lines, and each bl ock appearing for approxinmately
three seconds.] (Mtsubishi Exhibit D).

B. [ Audi 0:] "Now you can buy a ninety-four Eclipse for one
fifty-nine a nonth with five hundred down."

[Video:] "BUY: $159 a nonth/ $500 DOM'

[ The advertisenent contains the follow ng credit
di scl osure at the bottomof the screen in white fine
print superinposed on a nulti-col ored, noving
background and acconpani ed by background sound:
"Exanpl e based on MBRP of $12,519 and a selling price
of $11,827 for an Eclipse STD MT (FOG A01). $500
down. 5.06% APR D anond Advant age Pl an financi ng for
54 nos.: 53 nonths at $159/no. and a FI NAL PAYMENT CF
$4,757. Tax, title, lic., registration, regionally
requi red equi pnent, deal er options, and charges extra.
Under certain conditions you nay refinance the fina
paynent or sell the vehicle to Mtsubishi Mtors Oedit
of Anerica, Inc. at end of term . . ." The fine print
i s displayed on two screens, each containing a bl ock of
five lines, and each bl ock appearing for approxinately
three seconds.] (Mtsubishi Exhibit E)

C [Along with the statenents described in Paragraph 5,
Exhibit C contains the follow ng credit disclosure at the bottom
of the page in small print: " . . . For exanple: 2.9% APR D anond
Retail Plan financing available for 24 nonths at $801 per nonth
for a Galant Swith automatic transmssion (FOG A88), with a
selling price of $18,6043. $0 down. Tax, title, license,
regi stration, regionally required equi prent, deal er options, and
charges extra . . . Exanpl e based on MSRP of $18, 043 and a
selling price of $17,121 for a Galant S with automatic
transm ssion (FOG A88). $0 down. 5.53% APR D anond Advant age
Plan financing for 42 nmonths: 41 nonths at $249 per nonth and a
FI NAL PAYMENT OF $9,509. Tax, title, license, registration,
regional ly required equi pment, deal er options, and charges extra.

Under certain conditions, you nay refinance the final paynment or



sell the vehicle to Mtsubishi Mtors Credit of Anerica, Inc. at
end of term . . ."] (Mtsubishi Exhibit Q.



Federal Trade Conm ssion Act MViol ations
COUNT IV: Msrepresentation in Oedit Advertising

15. Through the means descri bed in Paragraphs 5 and 14,
respondent has represented, expressly or by inplication, that
consuners can buy the advertised Mtsubishi vehicles at the terns
promnently stated in the advertisenents, including but not
necessarily limted to the nonthly paynment anount and/or anount
stated as "down."

16. In truth and in fact, consuners cannot buy the advertised
M tsubi shi vehicles at the terns promnently stated in the
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to the

nont hly paynment anount and/ or anount stated as “down. ” Consuners
are also responsible for a final balloon paynent of several

t housand dol lars to purchase the advertised vehicles. Therefore,
respondent’'s representation as alleged in Paragraph 15 was, and

is, false or msleading.

17. Respondent's practices constitute deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)

of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S.C § 45(a).
COUNT V. Failure to D sclose Adequately in Oredit Advertising

18. Inits credit advertisenents, respondent has represented,
expressly or by inplication, that consuners can buy the
advertised vehicles at the terns promnently stated in the
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to the

nont hly paynment anount and/ or anount stated as “down. ” These
advertisements do not adequately disclose additional terns
pertaining to the credit offer, including but not necessarily
l[imted to a final balloon paynent of several thousand dollars
and the annual percentage rate. The existence of these
additional ternms would be naterial to consuners in deciding

whet her to buy a Mtsubishi vehicle. The failure to disclose
adequately these additional terns, in light of the representation
made, was, and is, a deceptive practice.

19. Respondent's practices constitute deceptive acts or
practices in or affecting commerce in violation of Section 5(a)

of the Federal Trade Comm ssion Act, 15 U S. C § 45(a).
COUNT VI: Truth in Lending Act and Regulation Z Viol ations

20. Respondent 's credit advertisenents, including but not
necessarily limted to Mtsubishi Exhibits C D, and E state a
nmont hl y paynent anmount and/ or an anount "down." The credit



di scl osures in these adverti senments contain the follow ng terns
required by Regul ation Z: the annual percentage rate and the
terns of repaynent.

21. The credit disclosures in respondent's television credit
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to

Mt subi shi Exhibits D and E, are not clear and conspi cuous
because they appear on the screen in snall type, against a
background of simlar shade, for a very short duration, wth
background sounds and i nmages, and/or over a noving background.

The credit disclosures in respondent ’s print credit
advertisenents, including but not necessarily limted to

M tsubi shi Exhibit C are not clear and conspi cuous because they
appear in small print.

22. Respondent's practices violate Section 144 of the Truth in
Lending Act, 15 U S. C  § 1664, as anended, and Section 226.24(c)
of Regulation Z, 12 CF. R § 226.24(c), as anended.

THEREFORE, the Federal Trade Commssion this day of
: , has issued this conplaint agai nst respondent.

By the Comm ssi on.

Donald S. dark
Secretary
SEAL:

[ Exhibits A-E attached to paper copies of conplaint, but not
avail able in electronic form]
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ANALYSI S OF PROPCSED CONSENT CRDERS
TO Al D PUBLI C COMMVENT

The Federal Trade Comm ssion has accepted separate
agreenents, subject to final approval, to proposed consent orders
from General Mditors Corporation ("CGeneral Mtors"), Anmerican Honda
Mot or Corporation, Inc. ("Honda"), Anerican |Isuzu Mdtors Inc.

("lsuzu"™), Mazda Motor of America, Inc. ( “Mazda”), and Mtsubish
Motor Sales of Anerica, Inc. ("Mtsubishi") (collectively referred
to as "respondents").

The proposed consent orders have been placed on the public
record for sixty (60) days for reception of comrents by interested
persons. Comments received during this period will becone part of
the public record. After sixty (60) days, the Conmssion will
again review the agreenents and the comments received and w ||
deci de whether it should withdraw fromthe agreenents or nake
final the agreenents' proposed orders.

The conplaints allege that each of the respondents’
aut onobi | e | ease advertisenents viol ated the Federal Trade
Comm ssion Act ("FTC Act"), the Consuner Leasing Act ("CLA'), and
Regulation M The conplaints also allege that General Mdtors and
M tsubishi's autonobile credit advertisenments violated the FTC
Act, the Truth in Lending Act ("TILA"), and Regulation Z  Section
5 of the FTC Act prohibits fal se, msleading, or deceptive
representations or omssions of material information in
advertisenments. In addition, Congress established statutory
di scl osure requirenents for |ease and credit advertising under the
CLA and the TILA respectively, and directed the Federal Reserve
Board ("Board") to promul gate regul ations inpl ementing such
statutes -- Regul ations Mand Z See 15 U S C §§ 1601-1667e;
12 CF.R Part 213; 12 CF. R Part 226. On Septenber 30, 1996,
Congress passed revisions to the CLA that will be inplenmented by
the Board through future changes to Regulation Mand w ||l becone

optionally effective i mredi ately. See Title Il, Section 2605 of
t he Omi bus Consol i dat ed Appropriations Act for Fiscal Year 1997,
Pub. L. No. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, (Sept. 30,

1996) ("revised CLA"), as anmended, and Section 213.7(d)(2) of
revised Regulation M 61 Fed. Reg. at 52,261 (to be codified at 12

CFR §213.7(d)(2)), as anmended.

The conpl ai nts agai nst General Mtors, Honda, |suzu, Mzda,
and Mtsubishi allege that respondents’ autonobile |ease
advertisenments represented that a particular amount stated as
"down" is the total anount consuners nust pay at the initiation of
a | ease agreenent to | ease the advertised vehicles. This
representation is false, according to the conplaints, because
consuners nust pay additional fees beyond the anmount stated as



"down," such as the security deposit and first nmonth's paynent, to
| ease the advertised vehicles. The conplaints also allege that
respondents failed to disclose adequately these additional fees in
their advertisenments. These practices, according to the
conplaints, constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of
Section 5(a) of the FTC Act.

The conplaints further allege that respondents' |ease
advertisenments failed to disclose the terns of the offered | ease
in a clear and conspi cuous manner, as required by the CLA and
Regul ation M According to the conplaints, respondents’
tel evision | ease disclosures were not clear and conspi cuous
because they appeared on the screen in snmall type, against a
background of simlar shade, for a very short duration, and/or
over a noving background. The General Mdtors, Honda, Mazda, and
M t subi shi conplaints also allege that these respondents' fine
print disclosures of |ease terns in print advertisenents were not
cl ear and conspi cuous. The conplaints, therefore, allege that
respondents' failure to disclose |lease terns in a clear and
conspi cuous manner violates the CLA and Regul ati on M

The CGeneral Mditors and M tsubishi conplaints also allege that
t hese respondents' credit advertisenents represented that
consuners can purchase the advertised vehicles at the terns
promnently stated in the ad, such as a | ow nonthly paynment and/or
a |l ow amount "down." This representation is false, according to
the conpl aints, because consuners nust also pay a final balloon
paynent of several thousand dollars, in addition to the | ow
nont hly paynment and/ or anmount down, to purchase the adverti sed
vehicles. The conplaints further allege that respondents General
Mtors and Mtsubishi failed to disclose adequately in their
credit advertisenments additional terns pertaining to the credit
offer, including the existence of a final balloon paynent of
several thousand dollars and the annual percentage rate. These
practices, according to the conplaints, constitute deceptive acts
or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act.

The CGeneral Mtors and Mtsubishi conplaints further allege
that these respondents' credit advertisenents failed to disclose
required credit ternms in a clear and conspi cuous nmanner, as
required by the TILA and Regul ation Z. According to the
conpl ai nts, respondents' television advertisenents contai ned
credit disclosures that were not clear and conspi cuous because
t hey appeared on the screen in snmall type, against a background of
simlar shade, for a very short duration, and/or over a noving
background. The conplaints also allege that these respondents'
fine print disclosures of credit terns in print advertisenents
were not clear and conspi cuous. The conplaints, therefore, allege
that General Mdtors and Mtsubishi's failure to disclose credit
terns in a clear and conspi cuous manner violates the TILA and
Regul ation Z.



The proposed consent orders contain provisions designed to
remedy the violations charged and to prevent the respondents from
engaging in simlar acts and practices in the future.

Specifically, subparagraph I.A of the proposed orders prohibits
respondents, in any | ease advertisenent, frommsrepresenting the
total anmount due at |ease inception, the anount down, and/or the
downpaynent, capitalized cost reduction, or other anount that
reduces the capitalized cost of the vehicle (or that no such
amount is required). Subparagraph I.B. of the proposed orders

al so prohibits respondents, in any | ease advertisenent, from
nmaki ng any reference to any charge that is part of the total

amount due at | ease inception or that no such anount is due, not
including a statenment of the periodic paynment, nore prom nently
than the disclosure of the total anount due at |ease inception.
The "prom nence"” requirenment prohibits the conpanies fromrunning
deceptive advertisenents that highlight zero dollars or other |ow
amounts "down," w th inadequate disclosures of actual tota
inception fees. This "prom nence" requirenent for |ease inception
fees also is found in the revised Regulation Mrecently adopted by
t he Boar d.

Mor eover, subparagraph |.C of the proposed orders prohibits
respondents, in any | ease advertisenent, fromstating the anount
of any paynent or that any or no initial paynment is required at
consunmation of the |ease, unless the ad al so states: (1) that the
transaction advertised is a lease; (2) the total anount due at
| ease inception; (3) that a security deposit is required; (4) the
nunber, amount, and timng of schedul ed paynents; and (5) that an
extra charge may be inposed at the end of the | ease termwhere the
l[iability of the consuner at |ease end is based on the anticipated
resi dual value of the vehicle. The information enunerated above
must be displayed in the | ease advertisenent in a clear and
conspi cuous manner. This approach is consistent with the | ease
advertising disclosure requirenents of the revised CLA

Paragraph Il of the proposed orders provides that |ease
advertisements that conply with the disclosure requirenents of
subparagraph 1.C. of the orders shall be deened to conply with
Section 184(a) of the CLA, as anmended, or Section 213.7(d)(2) of
the revised Regul ation M as anended.

Paragraph 111 of the proposed orders provides that certain
future changes to the CLA or Regulation Mwill be incorporated
into the orders. Specifically, subparagraphs I.B. and I.C will
be anmended to incorporate future CLA or Regul ation Mrequired
advertising disclosures that differ fromthose required by the
above order paragraphs. In addition, the definition of "total
anmount due at |ease inception,” as it applies to subparagraphs
|.B. and I.C. only, will be amended in the sane manner. The
orders provide that all other order requirenents, including the



definition of "clearly and conspicuously,” w |l survive any such
revi si ons.

Subpar agraph 1V. A of the proposed General Mtors and
M t subi shi orders prohibits these respondents, in any credit
advertisenment, frommsrepresenting the exi stence and anount of
any bal | oon paynent or the annual percentage rate; subparagraph
| V.B. also prohibits these respondents fromstating the anmount of
any paynent, including but not limted to any nonthly paynent, in
any credit advertisenent unless the anmount of any bal |l oon paynent
is disclosed promnently and in close proximty to the nost
prom nent of the above statenents.

Subpar agraph 1V.C. of the proposed General Mt ors and
M t subi shi orders al so enjoins these respondents from
dissemnating credit advertisenents that state the amount or
per cent age of any downpaynent, the nunber of paynents or period of
repayment, the anmount of any periodi c paynment, including but not
[imted to the nonthly paynment, or the anmount of any finance
charge wi thout disclosing, clearly and conspi cuously, the
following itens of information: (1) the anmount or percentage of
t he downpaynent; (2) the terns of repaynent, including but not
l[imted to the anount of any bal |l oon paynent; and (3) the correct
annual percentage rate, using that termor the abbreviation "APR "
as defined in Regulation Z and the (ficial Staff Commentary to
Regul ation Z If the annual percentage rate nay be increased
after consummation of the credit transaction, that fact nust also
be clearly and conspi cuously di scl osed.

The information required by subparagraphs I.C (I|ease
advertisenments) and IV.C (credit advertisenents) nust be
di scl osed "clearly and conspi cuousl y* as defined in the proposed
orders. The "clear and conspi cuous" definition requires that
respondents present such |ease or credit information within the
advertisenment in a manner that is readable [or audi ble] and
under st andabl e to a reasonabl e consuner.

The definition |l ends specificity to and is consistent with
the general "clear and conspi cuous" requirenment in Regul ations M
and Z, which requires readabl e and under st andabl e di scl osures.
Simlar to prior Coonmssion orders and statenents that interpret
Section 5 s prohibition of deceptive acts and practices, these
orders require respondents to include certain disclosures in
advertising that are readabl e (or audi bl e) and understandable to
reasonabl e consuners.

The purpose of this analysis is to facilitate public comrent
on the proposed orders, and it is not intended to constitute an
official interpretation of the agreenents and proposed orders or
to nodify in any way their terns.



